## PLANNING POLICY & BUILT HERITAGE WORKING PARTY

Minutes of the meeting of the Planning Policy & Built Heritage Working Party held on Monday, 11 September 2023 at the Council Chamber - Council Offices at 10.00 am

Committee Cllr A Brown (Chairman)

**Members Present:** 

Cllr M Batey Cllr V Holliday
Cllr N Dixon Cllr L Paterson
Cllr M Hankins Cllr A Varley

Cllr P Heinrich

**Substitute** Cllr A Fitch-Tillett

**Members Present:** 

Officers in Assistant Director for Planning Attendance: Planning Policy Manager (PPM)

Senior Conservation and Design Officer (SCDO)
Democratic Services & Governance Officer (DSO)

#### 28 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Cllr G Bull, Cllr P Fisher, Cllr J Toye and Cllr J Punchard. Cllr A Fitch-Tillett was present as a substitute for Cllr J Punchard.

#### 29 PUBLIC QUESTIONS

None received.

### 30 MINUTES

The Minutes of the Planning Policy & Built Heritage Working Party meeting held Monday 7<sup>th</sup> August were approved as a correct record.

#### 31 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None received.

#### 32 ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

None.

# 33 DRAFT GLAVEN VALLEY CONSERVATION AREA APPRAISAL - PUBLIC CONSULTATION

#### Officer's Report

The SCDO introduced the Officer's report and recommendation.

With respect of policy context, the SCDO established the definition of a Conservation Area being an area 'of special architectural or historic interest the character or appearance of which it is desirable to preserve or enhance'. Section 69, Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. Section 69 further confirms the responsibilities of Local Planning Authorities (LPA's) to 'review the past

exercise of functions under this section and to determine whether any further parts of their area should be designated. Section 71 of the Planning Act requires LPAs 'to formulate and publish proposals for the preservation and enhancement' of their conservation areas, and Section 72 asks LPAs to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area when exercising planning functions.

It was noted that funding had been received for the review of the Glaven Valley, with this Conservation Area identified early due to its 1980s designation, resulting in an increasing need for robust definition and understanding, and a requirement for an appraisal document to inform decision making. The review of the settlement designations, outlined in the Officers report, had been adopted, the final step in the current programme was to review the overlying Glaven Valley which had been undertaken in collaboration with the Council's appointed consultants Purcell. Public consultation of the GVCAA was held between 21st November 2022 and 31st March 2023, including 3 public meetings. The feedback received from the consultation had informed changes made to the draft and proposed boundaries.

The SCDO confirmed that there were several areas proposed for exclusion from the GVCA boundary prior to the public consultation however, following feedback areas identified in Appendix 3 of the Officers report had now been retained / reinstated.

Amongst minor textual corrections raised in feedback, there had been several more significant amendments to the appraisal including the Summary of Special Interest (P16-17) which had been significantly re-written post-consultation in order to better reflect the varied character of the GVCA. Due to the retention of the settlements within the GVCA, much of the text had been re-written to reflect this change. In addition, P71-79 provided a summary of each settlement and reference the individual appraisals for each one, and discussion of the North Norfolk Landscape Character Assessment (2018) had been added within P50-52.

The SCDO confirmed, subject to approval by the Working Party and Cabinet, that a three-week public consultation would be undertaken. Arrangements would include publication of the documents on the NNDC Website; invitation for comments; direct contact with properties affected by new boundary proposals which fall outside the settlement boundaries, and; notification to Parish Councils and those who had commented on the prior consultation. Rather than write to each household about the consultation directly, the Council would contact the relevant Parish Councils and ensure that notices of the consultation were placed in prominent public locations. Once the consultation had concluded, representations would be considered by the Conservation and Design Team, with a final draft expected to be returned to the Working Party late 2023.

#### Member's debate and question's

- i. The Chairman noted that there had been great deal of public interest in the consultation and spoke favourably of undertaking a further public consultation following the responses received, considering such engagement reflected the ethos of the Council. The Chairman asked the SCDO about the consultation arrangements of engaging with the public who live near to listed buildings.
- ii. The SCDO confirmed that the Council would write to those households in close proximity listed buildings contained in the GVCAA.

- iii. The Chairman praised one of the responses from a resident of Brinton and Sharrington and commended the research they had conducted with respect of the chalk stream, which was in the process of being registered. The Chairman noted that the Working Party were asked to consider whether to proceed with consultation, and not to discuss the merits of specific aspects of the GVCA. Members would have the opportunity to review the GVCAA after the consultation had concluded.
- iv. Cllr V Holliday declared a pecuniary interest in the item, she owns two listed properties contained within the GVCA. She advised her intention to obtain guidance from the Monitoring Officer on this matter.
- v. The Chairman asked the DSO for guidance with respect of Cllr V Holliday's declaration.
- vi. The DSO endorsed Cllr V Holliday obtaining guidance from Monitoring Officer and suggested that Cllr V Holliday may consider abstaining from voting on this item till such advise was received.
- vii. Cllr N Dixon proposed acceptance of the Officers recommendation which he considered to be a comprehensive piece of work.
- viii. Cllr P Heinrich agreed that it was an excellent document and seconded the Officers recommendation.
- ix. Cllr A Fitch-Tillett commented that she was pleased that Sharrington had been proposed to for inclusion to the GVCAA, and the acknowledgement of the role of the beck within the review.

**RESOLVED** by 8 votes for and 1 abstention.

That the Planning Policy & Built Heritage Working Party recommend to Cabinet that;

The responses to the first round of public consultation on the Glaven Valley Conservation Area Appraisal (GVCAA) are noted, and the subsequent revisions made to the text and boundary are endorsed, and:

Another round of public consultation is undertaken on the revised appraisal document as laid out in the report, the results of which will be brought back to Working Party in due course.

# 34 UPDATE ON LOCAL PLAN EXAMINATION PROGRESS AND COMMUNICATIONS

The PPM advised the present position with respect of the Local Plan which had been submitted for examination, an Inspector appointed, and initial questions raised. The questions raised and responded to by the Council related to factual matters of the Alternative Housing Target, plan period and Nutrient Neutrality, and a response was awaited from the Inspector. No date had yet been set for the formal hearings, which the PPM considered would likely commence in the New Year. He reflected that the changing position on Nutrient Neutrality which may have interesting impacts on the Local Plan.

The Chairman commented that it was challenging time for those Local Authorities

who had paused Local Plan making, with information coming from central government that there 'may be consequences', NNDC were not affected by this issue, having submitted its Local Plan earlier in 2023. The Chairman reflected that there may series of prospective changes arising from of revisions to the NPPF and the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill.

35	EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC	
	None.	
Γhe m	eeting ended at 10.30 am.	
		Chairman